January 20, 2016


QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES FOR NAVSTA NEWPORT
CLARIFICATION # 2 –LO-2015351
NAVSTA Newport, RI

1. That the Navy does not intend to build a golf course on Tank Farm 5 and that it is fully open and available for lease?
Answer:   The use of this land has been designated for renewable energy.  There are no plans for any other use.
2. What is the current status of the “Remedial design which is underway for tank farms 4
and 5?
Answer:  The Navy has worked extensively with EPA and RIDEM on both these sites.  The Navy is working on final closure for three tanks (42, 48, and 51) and piping located on Tank Farm 5.  The Navy envisions closure certificates complete prior to lease signing, in order to optimize the solar footprint.

The Navy is currently working on a comprehensive groundwater monitoring program.  Project footprint must not interfere with this program, which entails regular water sampling of new and existing monitoring wells.

Design plans & specifications and work plans must be submitted to the Rhode Department of Environmental Management (RIDEM) and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) for their review and approval prior to installation/construction to demonstrate compliance with the restrictions specified. 

3. CCB has reached out to the Customer Solution / Distributed Generation Team at National grid. The project manager from National Grid who has the most knowledge and understanding of Naval Station Newport, Mr. John Kennedy is currently on vacation. He will not be available for a conference call to answer questions until 2 pm on January 19. At this time he may not be able to provide all the answers we require, and may request additional time to provide the information. Given the significance, and importance, of establishing and designing the correct interconnection for this project CCB is requesting the bid to be extended from 4.00 pm on January 22 to Friday February 5th at 4pm. Please advise? 
and
We respectfully request a two-week extension to the proposal due date to allow time to contact potential off-takers who were out of the office during the Holidays.

Answer:  The Solicitation due date is extended to 15 February 2016 at 4:00 PM EDT. 
4. Given the condition of the soil is the contractor allowed to drive posts into the ground. These posts are required for the perimeter fencing and for the structural members which supports the Solar PV racking system.
Answer:  On the Landfill site, the cap cannot be broken.  Therefore alternative means should be considered.  Fencing posts and racking penetration outside of the capped landfill on leased land is allowed.  
Tank Farms 4 & 5 allow posts.  Driving and placing of posts must comply with ECP (To be provided to selected offeror) and other conditions outlined in the RFP, and including National Grid and Naval Station Newport dig safes are clear of underground utilities.
5. When leveling Tank Farm 4 or 5 can we keep any of the excess soils on the site?
Answer:  Contractor must follow Naval Station Newport's Soil Management Plan (SMP).  The SMP requires disturbed soils to be removed for offsite disposal at a Licensed Solid Waste Disposal Facility.   Identified soil contaminates are listed in the ECPs, and will be provided to the selected offeror. 
6. Has the Navy, or National Grid, conducted any preliminary studies of the electrical system at Naval Station Newport with regards to this project?
Answer:  The Navy has conducted a Grid Integration Analysis which included the prospect of solar arrays located on the proposed parcels of land.  Successful proposer will have access to study. 
7. Has any study been completed, or documentation available, with regards to wild life habitat, or protected species at the proposed site locations?
Answer:  An Environmental Assessment has been finalized and a signed FONSI is expected at the end of January.  The EA will be available for public review at that time.  The contractor must abide by Time of Year restrictions for timbering as called out in the lease.  Only timber located in the footprint called out in the RFP can be removed. USFWS 4d ruling on the Northern Long-Eared Bat applies to these sites. 
8. Is the capped Landfill a registered or protected nesting location for birds?
Answer: No
9. What discount rate was used for the IKC in the form of the cost of the system upgrades and any ongoing service payments for backup power (if applicable)?
Answer:  Not applicable. 
10. Just to be clear, other than backup power, there cannot be a power purchase agreement between the project and the Offeror, correct? I just want to be clear on the need for offtake.
Answer:  Correct.
11. Is it possible to provide the system upgrades required to power critical loads directly from the system, reducing the amount of offtake required and the lease payments for the site (related question)?
Answer:  No, purchase by DON.
12. Is there any load data you can provide, or can you give us a reasonable assumption to use for modelling purposes?
Answer:  Average annual load range for Newport is 8-11 MW.  The average peak load range is 14-18 MW. 
13. Finally, is interconnection and regulatory approval required? Given the short timeframe, I see that as a possibility.
Answer:  Yes.  
14. The RFP highlights three areas for solar development, and I just wanted to clarify that the three sites are separate, distinct parcels?
Answer:  Yes.  It is the Navy’s interest to maximize the use of each of these parcels for renewable energy.  
15. The site plans in the RFP show a Conceptual Interconnection Area.  Please provide additional details related to the Interconnection in regards to the following:
a)      Interconnection points for each site; and
Answer:  In order for the Navy to complete an Environmental Assessment, locations for interconnection based on best available information were selected.  If the offeror’s design proposes areas outside of the EA, the Navy cannot guarantee approval from outside agencies (i.e. USFWS, SHPO).  The offeror is encouraged to review the environmental constraints prior to proposing a design.

b)      Any other relevant details and/or correspondence that can be shared with respect to the Interconnection, such as: Information from DON discussions with National Grid about the cost of interconnection facility replacement/upgrades
Answer:  The Navy has only discussed the project with National Grid in general terms.  National Grid is aware that the Navy intends to put renewable energy on these sites.


16. What specific buildings does the DON have in mind for the Rooftop Solar System IKC, or is this up to the Contractor to make that decision?
Answer:  The Navy has not selected any buildings at this time.  If the offeror wishes to propose a project for IKC, the Navy would be interested in a conceptual description such that the Navy can determine feasibility, approximate value, and determine knowledge and capability for offeror to complete the project.
17. Please provide the current cost of power (both energy and delivery) at the base.
Answer: Not for public dissemination.  

18. Please provide the appropriate discount rate that we should use in our Net Present Value analysis for the IKC.
Answer: Market rates vary; please provide your rates and assumptions. 
19. Please provide details on the electricity distribution system at the base (one line diagrams, feeder locations, substation locations, etc).
Answer:  This project is located on Navy property outside of the gate.  There is a 69 kV line owned by National grid that runs in the distribution right of way along Defense Hwy from the Installation, past the landfill and Tank Farm 5 and turns up Greene Lane.    A Navy owned 13.8 kV distribution line traverses from the Installation along the right of way adjacent to Defense Hwy past all three sites.
20. Is the Navy aware of anyone who can meet the requested standard of "proof of an offtake agreement such as a formal offtake agreement, signed letter of intent, and/or other relevant documentation"?
Answer: Navy is not aware of current market arrangements. 
21. Referring to section 2.3 of the RFP, there is reference to the ECP's and the "Part 2" references. Do you have these readily available or can you direct me to where they may be posted?  Many of the references can be searched for on the internet, but there are some things like NAVSTANPTINST 5090.15C which do not seem to be available.
Answer:  ECP will be made available to the selected offeror during negotiations. 
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